## SAFER BROMLEY PARTNERSHIP BOARD

Minutes of the meeting held at 10.00 am on 9 December 2021

### Present:

Joanne Stowell ((LBB Assistant Director: Public Protection)) (Chairman)

Councillor Angela Page, Portfolio Holder for Public Protection

Richard Baldwin, People Department

Sharon Baldwin, (Safer Neighbourhood Board Chairman)

Elaine Beadle, (LBB Road Safety Manager)

Andy Brittain, MET Police

Sandra Campbell

Lynnette Chamielec, Housing, Planning and Regeneration

David Dare, LBB Children's Services

Rachel Dunley, (LBB Head of Service for Early Intervention, and Family

Support)

Chan Farooqui, Victim Support

Dirk Holtzhausen, LBB--ECHS

Betty McDonald, (LBB Head of Youth Offending Service)

Kevin McKenzie, (Bromley LFB Fire Commander)

Jared Nehra, Children's Services

Sarah Newman, (LBB Head of Community Safety Environmental and Domestic Regulation.

Rachel Pankhurst, (LBB Domestic Abuse Strategy Co-ordinator)

Anthony Powell, (LBB Public Protection and Enforcement)

David Tait, (LBB Emergency Planning and Corporate Resilience Lead)

Rob Vale, (LBB Head of Commercial Regulation and Trading Standards)

Kevin McKenzie (Bromley Fire Commander)

Andy Brittain (Met Police Superintendent)

Dawn Helps (Tenancy Specialist Manager-Clarion Housing)

#### Also Present:

Councillor David Cartwright QFSM

41	WELCOME/HOUSE-KEEPING/INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND DECLARATION OF INTEREST	Action
	Apologies were received from Janet Bailey, Jamie O Malley, Sharon Kilborne, Vicky West, Ade Adetosoye, Chief Inspector Craig Knight, and the London Ambulance Service.	
	The Assistant Director for Public Protection and Safety (Joanne Stowell) chaired the meeting and there were no declarations of interest. She said that this was the third Board meeting of the year, but unfortunately this would be her last meeting as she was moving on to pastures new.	

42 SBP STRATEGIC DOCUMENT, MINUTES, MATTERS ARISING AND ACTIONS	Action
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record apart from the fact that the Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement had been noted as 'Vice Chairman' and this needed to be amended to 'Joint Chairman'.	d
The Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement notes that all matters arising had been updated upon except with respect to previous minutes 32, and 36. The former was regarding a sample of the data collected by the software on the new Housing system (regarding cases linked to domestic abuse) which was due to be presented to the Board at the meeting. The Assistant Director for Housing responded and said that the Housing Department had not picked up the action until late in the day, (after the Head of Service for Early Intervention and Family Support had noticed that the action was not for her). There had also been some system glitches and so the data could not be presented on the day of the meeting but would be disseminated to partners in due course.	of of n e or ot or s e
It was noted that the LAS had sent through their response regarding data requests which had been sent to all partners.	3
Minute 36 from the previous meeting referred to the fact that Chie Inspector Craig Knight would write an article on his research project for the Domestic Abuse magazine. This had been delayed due to pressures on police resources resulting from the COP 26 meetings. He was hoping to write this article prior to the March 2022 Board meeting.	et O S.
The briefing that had been sent through from Clarion Housing wanted and there were no questions regarding this from the Board.	3
RESOLVED that:	
1) A sample of data collected by the new Housing software system would be disseminated to the Board in due course.	e LC
2) Chief Inspector Craig Knight would endeavour to write the article on his research project for the Domestic Abuse magazine before the March 2022 Board meeting.	
43 QUESTIONS RECEIVED FROM COUNCILLORS OR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC	F Action
Members noted that a written question had been received from Councillor Tony Owen with respect to the Crofton Road Cycle Scheme. He had asked all three blue light emergency services if an	Э

	of them had noted any delay in emergency response times as a result of the scheme. All three services had responded and said that they were not aware of any delays to response times as a result of the scheme.	
44	SUBSTANTIVE DISCUSSION PROGRESS AGAINST THE SAFER BROMLEY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY	Action
45	QUARTER 3: MAIN PRIORITY UPDATE: KEEPING YOUNG PEOPLE SAFE	Action
	The Chairman requested that the Bromley Drug and Alcohol Team be invited to provide representation to the Board. She requested that their work be captured within the priorities. The Chairman thanked the YOS, Licensing, Probation Services and Education. She felt that their responses were comprehensive and provided the Board with a good overall understanding of their work and how it aligned with the priorities of the SBP. For the Board to be successful in delivering its aims against its priorities, it was vital that the Board worked together well collaboratively.	
	The Chairman reminded the Board that at the next meeting, the priority update would be Priority 4, which was 'Standing Together against Hate Crime and Extremism', but it would also be the <b>end of year update</b> . All partners would therefore need to provide details of their progress ahead of time to the Committee Clerk.	
	RESOLVED that the Bromley Drug and Alcohol Team be asked to provide a representative to sit on the Board and that partners provide their final year updates for the March 2022 meeting to the Committee Clerk in plenty of time.	SW BOARD
46	COMMUNITY IMPACT DAYS UPDATE	Action
	The Community Impact Days update was provided by Sandra Campbell—LBB ASB Co-ordinator. It was noted that Cllr Kathy Bance had previously highlighted issues with the Penge ClD. Ms Campbell had since spoken directly with Cllr Bance concerning this matter.	
	Ms Campbell wished the Assistant Director all the best for her new role and said that she would be sorely missed. She said that the CIDs were growing from strength to strength and LBB was moving about 3000kgs of fly tipping rubbish on a monthly basis. Much graffiti was also being removed. The Council had been working closely with the police, Border Force, LFB and Clarion Housing. It would soon be the case that Probation Services would also be involved with Community Impact Days.	

	Probation would be providing people to help with community projects under the 'Community Payback' scheme. Residents were providing very positive feedback with respect to the Community Impact Days.	
	The Chairman thanked Ms Campbell for the way that she had improved and developed the Community Impact Days. The Chairman asked Ms Campbell if she would disseminate the full briefings that she had drafted for the last three months and that these be disseminated to the Board.	
	Cllr Cartwright stated that the feedback that he had received after the Mottingham Community Impact Day was very positive; he expressed his thanks both to Ms Campbell and to the LFB Commander for their excellent work.	
47	KEY ISSUES/THEMES	Action
48	CRIME NEEDS ASSESSMENT	Action
	The Chairman informed the Board that the Crime Needs Assessment was a statutory requirement for all Community Safety Partnerships. It was designed to help partners understand the crime related needs of the borough and to help with decision-making at a local level and also to support the future commissioning process.	
	Last year the Crime Needs Assessment had been produced by Matthew Hodges (corporate graduate intern) and Matthew had kindly offered to produce the new Crime Needs Assessment which would be presented to the Board at the Q4 meeting in March 2022. The Chairman requested that Mr Hodges present the report.	
	RESOLVED that Matthew Hodges draft and present the CNA at the SBP meeting in March 2022.	МН
49	VIOLENCE ACTION PLAN UPDATE	Action
	The Chairman informed the Board that the Violence Reduction Action Plan had been updated twice in 2020 and it had been updated again in 2021. It was now regarded as a standing item on the Safer Bromley Partnership Board agenda.	
	It appeared that the GLA had changed the name to the 'Local Violence and Vulnerability Action Plan'. The updated template had been disseminated to all partners and this outlined the seven different mandatory themes and optional actions. The document had been signed off by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council and was now with the Borough Police Commander. The Chairman said that she would chase this with the Borough Commander as the document was required to be with MOPAC the following day.	

The final version of the document would subsequently be sent out to partners by Anthony Powell (LBB Community Safety Officer). The Chairman emphasised that the document was confidential and should not be shared outside of the Partnership

The Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Enforcement thanked the Chairman and everybody else who had been involved in the preparation of the Violence Reduction Action Plan document. It was clear that a lot of work had gone into producing the document and this had been acknowledged by the Leader. It was also noted that LBB had the third best Violence Reduction Action plan in London and it was being used as an example to follow by other boroughs. The Chairman concluded by saying that partners should be proud of the outcomes that had been achieved.

#### **RESOLVED** that

1) The LBB Community Safety Officer would disseminate the final version of the VRAP to the Board in due course.

ΑP

2) The VRAP was confidential and should not be shared outside of the Board.

# 50 SCRUTINY OF THE PARTNERS OF THE SAFER BROMLEY Action PARTNERSHIP BOARD

It was explained that it was a requirement of the Police and Justice Act that Councils had a Crime and Disorder Committee (CDC) which would be able to scrutinise the local Community Safety Partnership. As far as Bromley was concerned the Crime and Disorder Committee was the Public Protection and Enforcement, Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee. The Community Safety Partnership was the Safer Bromley Partnership Board. There was a requirement for the Crime and Disorder Committee to meet once a year, but in Bromley the Public Protection and Enforcement Committee met five times a year.

The Chairman explained that in terms of scrutiny of the SBP, this had become police centric. It was decided that the Crime and Disorder Committee formalise the scrutiny process. In view of this, it had been decided that the scrutiny undertaken by the CDC would be broadened to encompass all partners within the Safer Bromley Partnership Board and not just the police. So all partners from henceforth would be called to present to the Crime and Disorder Committee to have their work against the SBP priorities scrutinised. The work plan for this had been included as part of the agenda pack.

RESOLVED that the update regarding scrutiny of the Safer Bromley Partnership Board be noted.

51	PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR PARTNERS	Action
	The Chairman reiterated that regarding the scrutiny of partners by the CDC, this would be restricted specifically to their work within the Safer Bromley Partnership. The proposed work plan had been drafted for clarity and to give partners plenty of warning concerning when they would be presenting to the CDC. The Chairman said that the final version of the Work Plan should be with partners by the end of December.	
	Councillor David Cartwright, (Chairman of the Public Protection and Enforcement Committee) raised a query regarding hate crime. He said that the issue of hate crime was not due for discussion until February 2023 and expressed concern at this; he asked if this could be brought forward. The Chairman clarified that hate crime would be looked at by the SBP in Q4 in March 2022 and it would be a substantive item on its own at that meeting. The issue of hate crime would also be addressed by the police at the PDS meeting in March as part of their high harm priorities.	
	RESOLVED that the Work Plan for partners be agreed.	
52	AGENDA FRONT SHEET AND TERMS OF REFERENCE	Action
	The Chairman explained that this document had been drafted to outline the statutory responsibilities of the Safer Bromley Partnership. The Terms of Reference explained who was required to sit on the Board as a Core/Statutory representative with voting rights and who could attend by invitation. It also addressed matters such as attendance, commitments and chairing arrangements.	
	The Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement informed the Board that she was moving on to pastures new and would be taking up a directorship with an Essex authority. As a result of this and in line with the terms of reference, the joint chairmanship going forward would be undertaken by Colin Brand (LBB Director for Environment and Public Protection) and by Superintendent Andy Brittain.	
	The Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement stated that it had been her absolute pleasure to work on the Board as Vice-Chairman and as Joint Chairman.	
	RESOLVED that the Terms of Reference be agreed.	
53	LAS DATA UPDATE	Action
	It was noted that the LAS had submitted details of the data that they could capture and details of this had been sent out to Board members.	

	This data would be used when the time came to undertake a refresh of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategy	
	RESOLVED that the LAS update be noted.	
54	DRAFT INTER BOARD PROTOCOL	Action
	The Chairman explained that the purpose of the draft inter-board protocol was to define how the various LBB Boards could all work together in pursuit of safeguarding and in promoting the health and wellbeing of young people and adults in Bromley. The idea was that all four Boards would work together in collaboration as equal partners. The protocol outlined how each board worked across their remits, together with their specific functions.	
	It was noted that the Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement, together with the Director of Environment and Public Protection & Enforcement would be attending a workshop run by Teresa Bell on the 17th of January 2022, where the Protocol would be discussed in detail.	
	RESOLVED that the Inter Board Protocol be agreed.	
55	DHR AND PREVENT UPDATE	Action
	The DHR (Domestic Homicide Review) and Prevent update was provided by the Head of Trading Standards and Commercial Regulation as follows:	
	DHR 2 "NAJARA"	
	This report was received by the Head of Trading Standards and Commercial Regulation on 1st December 2021. The Board heard that the final duty of the DHR panel was to ensure they were satisfied that their information was fully and fairly represented in the reports and that they accurately reflected the review panel's findings. They should also be satisfied that the reports were of a sufficiently high standard to be submitted to the Home Office. The reports were shared with the panel on 3rd December 2021 with a request they responded to the Head of Trading Standards and Commercial Regulation with any comments by 10th January 2022. During this period the Action Plan could be reviewed.	
	Once agreement from the panel was received, the final version of the Overview Report and Executive Summary would be handed over to the Safer Bromley Partnership.	
	Normally, the documents would be shared ahead of the meeting, then there would be a presentation on the key aspects of the report such as an overview of the recommendations.	

However, given this case's confidentiality (and there was a recommendation that the report is not published), electronic sign off from statutory partners would be sought.

It was unlikely that the report would be changed in any way at this stage, but more the case that those partners involved in the response to Domestic Abuse were sighted on the report and its recommendations and agreed with the findings in general. The detailed analysis of the case was provided by the DHR Panel.

Once approved by the Panel and the Chair of the SBP and the Action Plan was agreed, the report would be submitted to the Home Office Quality Assurance Panel. There was currently a six month turnaround for these reviews. Recommendations from the action plan were already being addressed, with several completed.

# **DHR 3 "ALICE:**

The Home Office feedback letter was received on 25th October 2021 which commented that the report demonstrated good family engagement, was straightforward and helped paint a picture who Diane was as a person in her life. The Panel commended the Chair/author for contacting the perpetrator in prison to allow him to offer his contribution to the report and for linking with Victim Support Homicide Service (VSHS) to engage with existing support and advocacy for the family which helped to ease family engagement. There were some recommendations for areas of final development, and these had been addressed and received on 15th November 2021. On the 25th November 2021 the report was sent to the Chair of the Safer Bromley Partnership and the panel members.

The next step would be to send a copy to MOPAC and arrange publication — this was likely to be in the New Year following discussions with the family. The action plan would be managed by the Domestic Abuse Strategic Lead.

A copy would also be sent to Nicole Jacobs-- the Domestic Abuse Commissioner. As per the new duty under the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 – the duty stated that the report should be sent as soon as reasonably practicable after the report is completed.

# **Prevent Update:**

The Board was reminded that 'Prevent' formed part of the Government's wider counter-terrorism strategy, known as CONTEST. Prevent aimed to safeguard individuals from becoming terrorists or supporting terrorism.

It was noted that the terror threat level was raised from 'substantial' to 'severe' following the Liverpool incident last month on Remembrance

Sunday. This followed the murder of Sir David Amess in October which was also being treated as terror related.

The Home Office released official statistics of individuals referred to and supported through the Prevent programme in England and Wales from April 2020 to March 2021.

It was explained that when an individual was referred to Prevent, there was an initial screening and assessment and if a risk of radicalisation existed, a referral would be passed to the mutli-agency 'Channel' Panel. These panels were chaired by the local authority and sought to determine the extent of an individual's vulnerability to radicalisation and whether a support package, which may include an intervention, was necessary and proportionate to address the vulnerabilities.

In the year ending 31st March 2021 there had been 4,915 referrals to Prevent, a decrease of 22% on the previous year and the lowest number of referrals since 2016. The decrease was likely to have been driven by the effects of public health restrictions that were in place throughout the year to control the spread of the COVID-19 virus.

Fifty one percent of referrals were for individuals with a mixed, unstable or unclear ideology. This category reflected instances where the ideology presented involved a combination of elements from multiple ideologies (mixed), shifts between different ideologies (unstable), or where the individual did not present a coherent ideology, yet could still pose a terrorism risk (unclear). This also included individuals that may be vulnerable out of a sense of duty, or a desire for belonging and those obsessed with massacre or extreme/mass violence without targeting a particular group.

Twenty five percent were due to concerns related to extreme rightwing radicalisation--itself a reduction from previous years, but for the first time more than Islamist referrals

Twenty two percent were due to concerns related to Islamist radicalisation.

Police made the highest number of referrals (1,770 i.e. 36%), followed by Education (1,221 i.e. 25%) and this was the lowest number of referrals from Education since 2016, again likely to be a result of the pandemic.

Most referrals were male, and the largest age group was 15 to 20.

Of the cases referred to Channel (1,333) a total of 688 were adopted by the panel as being significant risks to radicalisation. This was a reduction of 7% and 0.6% respectively. Of the 688 cases adopted by the panels, the ideologies of concern were:

- Extreme Right-Wing radicalisation (317; 46%),
- Mixed, unstable or unclear ideology (205; 30%)
- Islamist radicalisation (154; 22%).

The Board heard that analysis was taking place around these figures because they seemed to be out of kilter with the terrorist picture. Of interest was the very low number of cases of mixed, unstable or unclear ideology which had been adopted by Channel -8%, yet they formed the largest share of referrals.

The Board was informed that the Prevent Review was with the Government for Ministerial approval.

A Prevent consultation was taking place which would focus on security related considerations being undertaken at certain publicly accessible locations--but not private venues, such as places of employment. The duty was likely to require those responsible to take such steps as were reasonably practicable to ensure the security of members of the public. This was likely to apply to venue owners and operators and large organisations.

The Head of the YOS asked if there was an update specifically regarding the local picture. The Head of Trading Standards and Commercial Regulation answered and said that he would share this information at the Children's Safeguarding Board the following week. It was noted that LBB was regarded as a low priority borough.

The Chairman asked the Head of Trading Standards and Commercial Regulation if he could share information from the Institute of Licensing with respect to aggregate spaces before the next Board meeting.

RESOLVED that the Prevent and DHR update be noted and that the Head of Trading Standards and Commercial Regulation share information from the Institute of Licensing with respect to 'aggregate spaces'.

RV

# 56 CRIME PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD

Action

Superintendent Andy Brittain briefed the Board as follows:

There had been a 14% reduction in reports to the police of domestic abuse. There was now a fully staffed Community Safety Unit and the police were seeking to extend the use of DV protection notices to provide greater support to victims.

The police intended to focus on the night time economy and on protecting women in public houses and other licensed premises in the borough; this linked in with the police's VAWG Strategy. It was reported that the police would have a dedicated Town Centre Team of 21 officers working in Bromley in February 2022.

Sex offences were up by 1% but this only equated to 6 offences in total. .

Knife Crime and Gun Crime figures had decreased.

There were some concerns about the volume of reported race/hate crime. There was now a greater emphasis on the quality of service provided to victims of race/ hate crime by the police. This was a work in progress and was an issue that was pan London. Superintendent Andy Brittain stated that race and hate crime had seen a 17% increase which was frustrating and a cause for concern. Some of this seemed to be linked to the Covid 19 pandemic.

The Board was pleased to note that the number of burglary offences had decreased. Much of this was probably due to the fact that more people were now working from home.

There had been an increase in the number of thefts of motor vehicles. As well as high end vehicles, there had also been an increase in the number of thefts of mopeds and scooters which seemed to tie in with the growth of food delivery services.

Superintendent Andy Brittain said that ASB calls had remained static.

The responses to the public attitude survey were disappointing. The Superintendent acknowledged that the police needed to improve the way that they communicated with the public and to improve their use of social media platforms. He felt that more public engagement was also important. He was concerned about the low number of people that knew how to contact their ward officers and this was something that definitely required improvement. It was planned that the email addresses for the ward teams would be refreshed and disseminated to the public.

The Joint Chairman (Joanne Stowell) briefed the Board with some information that had been provided by the Home Office that went some way to explain the rise in the numbers of reports concerning race/hate crime:

 Because people had been at home for longer, they had spent more time online and had been exposed to disinformation and various conspiracy theories

- There were now better reporting mechanisms for the reporting of race and hate crime
- There had been some trigger events such as a BLM backlash
- More people were coming forward to report crime

The Chairman of the SNB commented that she was working with Inspector Stuart Baker to improve the lines of communication between residents and local ward officers.

It was noted that a more detailed breakdown of race/hate crime (as it pertained to individual wards) could be obtained online from the MOPAC data store.

The Head of Service for Early Intervention and Family Support urged caution as far as the domestic abuse figures were concerned. From the volume of clients accessing the IDVA service, it seemed that domestic abuse numbers were not decreasing. Similarly, Dawn Helps from Clarion reported that Clarion had received a huge increase in requests for re-housing on the grounds of domestic abuse. The LBB Director of Children's Services confirmed this by commenting that a significant driver for the referral of children to Children's Services was domestic abuse. The Superintendent asked if Clarion could share with the police their data with respect to domestic abuse referrals and the response was affirmative.

In terms of perception, Councillor Angela Page (Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Enforcement) said that the two matters that were commented on by residents the most was the lack of visible policing and the continued problems with E Scooters where the perception was that little was being done to deal with this problem.

It was noted that a more detailed breakdown of race/hate crime (as it pertained to individual wards) could be obtained online from the MOPAC data store

The Chairman of the SNB commented that she was working with Inspector Stuart Baker to improve the lines of communication between residents and local ward officers..

The Joint Chairman (Joanne Stowell) raised a point of note with respect to the definition of ASB. This was important as ASB had been classed by MOPAC as a key priority. It had come to her attention that currently, a cat relieving itself in a neighbour's garden would come under the current broad definition of ASB. This was a matter that she had asked MOPAC to look at and had requested that the ASB data be dis-aggregated.

With respect to the data around 'public perception' Ms Stowell had asked MOPAC how they came by this data; the response from MOPAC seemed to indicate that what Partners were looking at was the 'science of small numbers'. This meant that some of the data that was currently being presented to the Board did not give a true reflection of the situation in Bromley. Ms Stowell had therefore requested that the LBB ASB Co-ordinator work with the police to produce a questionnaire that could be used locally the next time there was a Community Impact Day. Also the contact numbers for the local ward officers would be provided on the questionnaire.

Councillor David Cartwright stated that local residents across the borough were reporting speeding as an issue and he hoped if possible that this could be captured on the ASB data.

#### **RESOLVED** that

1) Clarion Housing would share data with the police concerning domestic abuse referrals.

DH

2) The LBB ASB Co-ordinator would work with the police to produce a questionnaire that could be used at the next Community Impact Day, and which would contain the contact numbers for local ward officers.

SC

# 57 EMERGING ISSUES/TASK FINISH UPDATES

Action

The Police and Crime Plan was now being consulted on. The Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement had attended a MOPAC meeting with the Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Enforcement regarding this. The Portfolio Holder referred to the detailed questions that the Assistant Director had asked at the meeting.

The Chairman said that she would ask the Committee Clerk to send out the link to the draft Action Plan to the Board. The new Police and Crime Plan was due for publication in April 2022.

The Board was informed that next year a brand new Safer Bromley Strategy would need to be written. The outcome from the Crime Needs Assessment would be fed into the new Strategy. A new public consultation with respect to a Crime Survey would also be required. The last time this was undertaken, LBB received one of the highest responses in London.

The LBB Director for Children's Services raised an issue concerning the LBB contract with MOPAC for VAWG services. The contract was due to be extended in March or April 2022. LBB had been in contact with the VAWG provider who said that they were concerned that the funding that they had received from MOPAC had not risen for 6/7

years. The funding was therefore not increasing in line with costs. They felt that they could not deliver an adequate service for the money that was on offer and so had declined to bid for the new contract.

It was clear that LBB could not be in a position where there was not a domestic abuse service across the borough. Resultantly, LBB had agreed that they would provide the extra £50k funding that was deemed to be required. It was noted that this was not an issue that had just manifested itself, but rather it was an issue that officers had raised before at the Domestic Abuse Strategic Board. It was a matter that would be noted on the LBB Risk Register.

RESOLVED that the update concerning emerging issues and the task and finish updates be noted.

58 AOB Action

Superintendent Andy Brittain informed the Board that he had a very effective team of female police officers who specialised in VAWG issues. He requested that if any of the Board members had any large events that they could attend and present to, then he would be grateful if they would make contact with him to discuss this further.

The LBB Borough Fire Commander expressed his thanks to Joanna Stowell as a very supportive partner who had guided him through the Bromley landscape. He said that she would be sorely missed.

The Head of Service for Family Support and Early Intervention also expressed her personal thanks to Ms Stowell.

The Assistant Director for Children's Services briefed the Board about a new scheme that was being developed--specifically aimed at young people involved in serious youth violence. It was backed by London Councils and there would be further updates at future Board meetings. It was a London wide scheme that would receive grant funding. It would be quite a demanding scheme where young people would be expected to be involved three or four times per week over a three month period.

The Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Enforcement expressed her thanks to Joanna Stowell, saying that she had been very supportive and a 'total rock' since she had unexpectedly taken over as Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Enforcement . She said that every Councillor that had come into contact with her was full of praise for her and this included the Leader.

RESOLVED that the AOB updates be noted.

# Safer Bromley Partnership Board 9 December 2021

59	9	DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING	Action
		The next meeting would be held at Bromley Civic Centre on 17 <sup>th</sup> March 2022 at 10am.	

The meeting ended at 11.30 am

Chairman